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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF A-ONE GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of A-One Gold Steels india Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statemenis give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 as
amended (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the company as at 31% March 2024 and its losses and other comprehensive loss, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our respensibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAF's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report
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Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary
actions, as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Managements and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors and management are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable ang prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
abiiity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financjal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
___economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respensive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Cornpany has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of
accounting estimates and reiated disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The provisions of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(1 1) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the
backup of the books of account and other relevant bocks and papers in electronic
mode has been kept on servers physically located in India but on a periodical/
incremental basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(i) below of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure A” of this report.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

fi. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note no 37 to the Financial Statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall -

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by
or on behaif of the company or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note no 38 to the financial statements, no funds
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have been received by the company from any person or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall
o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by
or on behalf of the Funding Party or-
* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come o our notice that has caused us tc
believe that the representations under the sub clause (iv) (a) & (b) contain any
material misstatement.

h. No dividend has been declared or paid by the company.

i. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has not used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail. The audit trail facility has not been operating throughout the year,
for ali relevant transactions recorded in the software.

j. With respect fo the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the
Company is incorporated as a private company and thus the provision of section
197(16) of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

For R Singhvi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

o (o

CA Pavan Kumar G k

Partner %
(Membership No. 228771) g,
UDIN: 24228771BKANNC3372

Place: Bangalore

Date:28-08-2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited of even date)

Report on the [nternal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 20132 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of A-One Gold Steels India
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Centrols over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAIY". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
mainteriance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence toc company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
~internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

ts, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
/ N
f ‘%Q@E' ;
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on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinicn
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controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controts Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R Singhvi & Associates,
Chartered Accountanis
{Firm’s Registration No. 0038708)

G. PAVAN KUMAR
Partner

{Membership No. 228771)

Place: Bangalore

Date: 28-08-2024
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A-One Gold Stecls India Private Limited
(CIN: U273 00KAZ020PTCI37708)

A One House No.326, Front Portion, Fiest Floor COAL Layout, Ward Neo. 08, Sahakar Nager, Bangalore, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560092

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2824
(AN amourts are i Lakhs, unless stated otherwisa}

Aszots

Mon-current assets
Right-of-use assets
Defarred tax assets (net)
Total Mon-Curvent Assels

Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivatenis
Other Financial Assets
Other current assats
Tokal Current Assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other aquity

Total Equity

Liakities
Nan-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Barrawings

Lease liabilities
Other Non Current Liabilities
Total Nen~Carrent Liabifities

Current liabilities
Financial Habilities
Lease lizhilitias
Other finandial liablities
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Material Accounting Policies
Motes to the Financial $tatements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our Audit report of even date.

For R. Singhvi & Asseciates
Chartered Accountants
ECAR FRM;0038705
i

G. Pavan Kumar

Partner
Membership No.: 228771

Place: Bangaluru
Date: August 28, 2024

Note

10
11
12

13
14
15

Tto 2

3043

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 371, 2023

207 3.28
0.01 0.08
2.08 3.38
452 5.54
0.25 -
(.80 -

5.57 5.54
1.65 3.90
5.00 500
{14.36) 0177
{5.36) {6.77)
{470 (.65
1.03 233
(.28 0.35
2.02 3.38
135 123
1357 1103
0.07 2.03
14.99 12.29
.85 8.9¢

Place: Bengalurw
Date: August 28, 2024

Place; Bengaluru
Date: August 28, 2024



£-One Gold Steels India Private Limited
(CIN: U27200KA2020PTC137708)

A One House No.326, Front Portien, First Floor CQAL Layout, Ward Wo. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore, Bengaluru, Kamataka, India, 560092

Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 37, 2024
(Al amourts are in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise}

Nete
Income
Revenue from operations
Other Income 16
Total Income
Finance costs 17
Depreciation and amortisation expense 18
Cther expenses 19
Total Expenses
Profitf{Loss) before exceptional ftems and tax
Less: Exceptional items
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax charge/(benefit} 25
Totat Tax Expenses
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income/({loss}
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
-Basic and diluted earnings/{loss) per share {Absolute Murnber) 20
Material Accounting Policies Ttc?2
Notes to the Financial Statements 3t043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalene financial statements
This is the Standaione Balance Sheet referred to in our Audit report of aven date.

For R, Singhvi & Associates
Chartered Accountants ‘-&"‘ & #ﬁ@
ECAT FRM: 0038705 %E’* :

W";%
? e, %
«?«fﬁa\:

G. Pavan Kumar
Partner

Place: Bangaluru
Date: August 28, 2024

For the year ended
Wiarch 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

0.06 0.02
.06 0.02
0.32 .39
1.21 121
1.05 1.78
2.53 3,38
{2.52) {3.26)
{2.52) {3.36)
0.07 {0.08)
0.07 (0.08)
(2.59) {3.28}
(2.59) {3.28}
(5.18) (6.55)

Place: Bangaluru
Date: August 28, 2024

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 28, 2024
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A~One Gold Steels India Private Limited
(CHN:; U2 7300KA2020PTC137708)

A One House No.326, Front Portien, First Flnor CQAL Layout, Ward No. 05, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalors, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 360092
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 37, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unfess stated otherwise)

(i}

Cash flow from eperating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax te cash
generated from operating activities

Depreciation and amoriisation expense

Finance costs

Gther Income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increasel/decrease in operating assets

Other Financial Assets

Cther Current Assets

Adjustments for increasef{decrease) in operating liabilities
Cther Mon Current liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Gther current liabifities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Less: Income tax paid {net of refunds)

Met cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities (4)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest Income
Met cash flow from investing activities (B}

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from Borrowings

Finance Costs

{Payment of} lease liabilities

Interest payment on lease liabilities

Met cash inflow fromMH{used in} financing activities {C}

Met increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Motes to Statement of cash flows:

Components of cash and bank balances (refer note 5)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances at end of the year

For the year ended
March 37, 2024

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

{2.52} (3.36}
121 121
032 0.39

{0.06} {0.02}

{1.05) (1.78)

{0.25) -

0.80 -

- 037
254 2.83
0.05 0.01)
0.49 1.41
0.49 1.41

{0.00) 0.63

{1.24) (1.13)

{0.27) 0.37)

{1.51) {0.87)
{1.02) .54
5.54 5.00
452 554

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
452 5.54
4,52 5.54




A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited
(CIN: U27300KA2020PTCT27T708)

A Gne House No.326, Front Pertion, First Floer CQAL Layout, Ward Mo. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560092

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 37, 2024

(Al amounts are In Lakhs, uniess stated otherwise)

{ii} Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars

MNon-current

horrowings

Current borrowings

For the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
Balance as at April 1, 2023

Net cash flows during the year
Adjustment for processing fee

Other non-cash charges

Balance as at March 31, 2024

for the year ended March 31, 2023
Balanee as at April 1, 2022

Met cash flows during the year
Adjustment for processing fee

Gther non-cash charges

Balance as at March 31, 2023

0.63

0.05

8.70

{iti} The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in
the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash Flow Statements” specifiad under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{iv} The above statement of cash flows should be read in

Material Accounting Policies
Notes to the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone financial statements

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet raferred to in our Budit report of aven date,

For R. Singhvi & Associatej_ﬂm_ammn
Chartered Accountants 7 g
FCAI FRN: 0038705

4

G. Pavan Kumar

w,

Partner
Membership No.: 228

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 28, 2024

e .ﬁ?}g?”‘ .

“DIN- 02150846

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 28, 202¢ Date: August 28, 2024



A-One Gold 5teels India Private Limited

(CIN: U273C0KA2020PTCT37708)

A One House Mo.328, Front Portion, First Floor CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, $ahakar Nagar, Bangalore, Bengaiuru, Karnataka, India, 560092
Statermnent of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AN amounts are in Lakhs, uniess stated otherwise)

Particulars Equity share Other equity Total

capital Retained

earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2022 5.00 (8.49) (3.49)
Additions during the year - - -
Profit for the year - (3.28} (3.28)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5.00 (11.77) {6.77)
Additions during the year - - -
Profit for the year - {2.59) (2.59)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5.00 {14.36) {5.36)
Material Accounting Policies Tte 2
Notes to the Financial Statements Ito 43

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet veferred fo in our Audit report of even date.

For R. Singhvi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ECAI FRN: 0038708 4

& i

G. Pavan Kumar

Partner

Place: Bengafuru

: Place: Bengaluru  Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 28, 2024 Date: August 28, 20 Date: August 28, 2024



A-One Gold Steels india Private Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year endead March 31, 2024

Company Overview:

A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited(the company) is a private limited company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at A One House No. 326, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08,
Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore — 560082. The Company was incorporated on August 28, 2020.The Company is
engaged in trading of Iron & Steel products.

1. Material Accounting Policies
1) Statement of compliance:

The material accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial siatements are
listed below. These policies have been applied consistently by the Company for all the periods presented in
these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

These Standaione financial statemenis (“the Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘Act’) read with the Companies {Indian Accounfing Standards} Rules, 2015,
as amendead and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorised and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on August 28, 2024.

{ii) {A) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conveniion with the exception of
certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transacticn between market participants at the measurement date.

fii} {8} Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with the
Company's normal operating cycle, which is based on the nature of business and the time elapsed between

deployment of resources and the realisation of cash and cash equivalents. The company has considered an
operating cycle of 12 months.

{ii) {C} Functional and prasentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (T}, which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.




A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i) (T} Basis of measuremant

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the foliowing items:

ftems Basis of measurement
Certain financial assets and liahilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability/asset Present value of defined benefit ohligation |less fair

value of plan asssat
{ii (E) Use of estimates and judgements

The praparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
refated disclosures. Actual resulis may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judgemenis:

» Recognition of defaerred {ax assets —The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on
an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
uiilised.

o Business model assessment ~The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and
how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are derecognised prior {0 their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring
is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues fo be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in business model and accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made.

¢ Evaiualion of indicators for mpairment of assets ~The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assats.

s Classification of leases —Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease adjusted with any oplion to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is
reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expecled [gase {erm on a lease-by-lease
basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised. in evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant
leaseheld improvemenis undertaken over the lease term, costs relating fo the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of suitable aiternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to
ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future
economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required io lease period relating to the
existing lease contract.

e Expected credit | 0SS {ECL} —The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for fmancaal asseis
o 3 % g

economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihcod of customers defaulting and
Company makes significant judgements regarding the following while assessing expect

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk
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= Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL
= Establishing groups of similar financial assefs for the purpeses of measuring ECL..

e Provisions and Contingent Liabilities — Al each Balance Sheet dale, based on the management judgment,
changes in facts and [egal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the
outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual fufure cutcome may be different from this judgement.

e Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets -~ Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual
values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence
that may change the utility of assets.

o DRefined benefit obligation (DBO)} - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBC amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

»  Fair value measurements-Management applies valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market gquotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

e  Retivement benefit obligations - The Company's retirement benefit obligations are subject to a number of
assumptions including discount rates, inflation, salary growth and mortality rate. Significant assumplions are
required when seiting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact on the
amount recorded in the Company's balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sets
these assumptions based on previous experience and third-party actuarial advice. The assumptions are
reviewed annually and adjusted following actuarial and experience changes.

{EiD) Revenue

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is fo be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning revenue
earned from confracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis, using a five-step model.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services 1o customer in an amount that
reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at
the fair vaiue of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any
taxes/duties and discounts.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met;
a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs; or
b. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; or
¢. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an aliernative use to thg/Cpt
an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. // &7/
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{iv)

{v}

For performance obligations whera cone of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the perfoarmance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a time on which the performance cbligation is satisfied.

Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export
sales is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Company recognises
provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale.

Variable consideration -This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts ete. it is estimated at contract
inception considering the terms of varicus schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resclved. It is reassessed at end of
each reporting period.

Significant financing component -Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its
customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does net adjust the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the
period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for
that good or service will be one year or less.

Contract balances:

Trade Receivabies and Contract Assets

A trade receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to a customer and consideration becomes
unconditional. Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is
conditional other than the passage of time.

Contract liabilitizs:

Contract liabilities are Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity

has already received consideration. Contract liabilities are recognisad as revenue when the company satisfies
its performance obligation under the coniract.

Other operating income

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and
conditionsattached to the benefits are satisfied.

Other income
Interest income
Interest income on time deposiis and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest methed.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Commission income

Commission income are recognised in Stalement of Profit or Loss only when the relevant services have been
rendered.

Employes Benefits

Short term employee benefits:

related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus el¢&Fe fecognised in the
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{vi)

statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are
presented as current employee beanefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term emploves benefiis:

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributicns to the plan at a
predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Emplovees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1852. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The
Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its moenthly contributions. Obligation for
coniribution to defined contribution plan are recegnised as an employee henefit expense in statement of profit
and loss in the pericd during which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for [ump sum payments
to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on terminaticn of employment in an amount
equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon cempletion of five
years of service. Benefiis payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to graiuity is accounted
for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit methed and adjusted for past
service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be
setfled. The resuliant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or
change in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive
income. The Company’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income} on the net defined benefit liahility/(asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) during the pericd as a result of coniributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related fo defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates {0 past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensaied absencas

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The
liability in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and
losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Tax expense

income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and Ioss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised dlrectly m sauity or in other
comprehensive income. -

Current tax
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Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related o income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended 1o realise the asset and setfle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Defarred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is nof recognised
for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor iaxable profit or loss at the time
of the fransaction;

- iaxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future faxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable iemporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred fax asset can be
realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporiing date and are
recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

{vil) Inveniories

Inventories comprise the followings:
a) Raw materials,

b) Work-in-progress,

¢) Finished and semi-finished goods
d) Stock-in-trade, and

e) Stores and spares.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value
is made on an item by item basis. Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined using first in,
first out method of inventory valuation.

Locse tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value.

Net realisabie value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary {c make the sale.

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management’s estirFafE
demand and market of the inventories. 7

{viii} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and shd 1€ ‘
investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less at the time of

~



A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited
Notes to the Financizl Siatements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i)

purchase and which are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current financial liakilities in the balanca sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingsnt assets
Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past svent that probably
requires an cutflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to seltle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liability

Contingent liabilitiss are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occuirence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the prebability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assels

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset
is not a contingent asset and is recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, in financial statements, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Property, plant and sguipment (including Capital work-in-grogress)

Recognition and measurament

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost {or) deemed cost applied on fransition to
ind AS less depreciation and impairment. Freehoid land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which includes capitalised
borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly atiributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which if is located.

Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalized as part of cost of qualifying asset.

If significant paris of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit and ioss.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as af 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrymg value as
the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.
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{xi}

Advance given towards acquisition {(or) construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under “Other Non-current assets”.

Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fufure economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value
over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal io lives specified as per schedule Il of the Act,

t

The useful lives of the assets are as under:

Particulars Useful lives {in years)
Tangible assets:

Land Not depreciable asset
Factory sheds and building 30 & 80 years

Plant and equipment 15 & 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipments 3 & 5 years

Vehicles 8 & 10 years

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these asssis.
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-raia basis from the date the
assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Bepreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively,

Leases
Az lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a confract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company ‘i;.__r‘.';_ fnall of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii} the Céiigariy h >

direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reascnably certain that they will
be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU asseis are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. in such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured
with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymentis
have been classified as financing cash flows.

{=zil} Impalrment of nen-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’'s or CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CCGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a GGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciationfamortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life, .

{xiii) Borrowing costs
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Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their infended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(xiv)Financial instrumentis
Inftial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial iiabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value measured on inifial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
¢ amortised cost,
e« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVCGCH), or
¢  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:
e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and
» the contraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCi - equity investment).
This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition,_the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements ‘_g n amortised
cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces aff deestntingZmismatch that
would ctherwise arise. e f \ %
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Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Combpany makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolic level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning conifractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

= how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

= the frequency, volums and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in fransactions that do not qualify for derecogniticn are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solsly payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other hasic lending risks and
costs {e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

e« terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and
e terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g., non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, which may include reascnable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium tc its contractual par amount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractua! par

prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

effective interest method. The amortlsed cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised
in statement of profit and loss.
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Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured ai fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVYOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCIl. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a reccvery of part of the cost of

the invesiment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OC| and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsegquent measurement & gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
cosis.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to setile them on a net hasis or to realise the assets and settle the liahilities simultaneously.

Derscognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are dischan
expire.
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The Company alsc derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

impairment of financial instrumenis

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:-
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost: and
Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:

¢  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

¢ abreach of coniract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider

otharwise;
» itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

fn all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
agreed credii period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
¢ the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security {if any is held); or S I

s the financial asset is past dus and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses
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Expected credit iosses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amoriised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could siill be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

{xv) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares
as at the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a later date.

{xvi)Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of producis/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment
including inter-segment revenue.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallocable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallocable income.

4. Segment assets and tlabmties include those directly !dentlﬂable with the re ectlve segments.

whole and not allocable to any segment.
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The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Dacision Maker’ or ‘'CODM’ within the
meaning of ind AS 108.

{uvii) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of
an intangibie asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent expenditure on an
intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense when incurred unless it is
probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its
originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured and atiributed to the
asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

Intangible assets under davelopment

Expenditure on research and development eligible for capitalisation are carried as intangible assets under
development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use.An intangible asset is derecognised
on disposal, or when ne future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets
Computer Software’s & other intangible assets is being depreciated on Straight line method based on the
method as prescribed under Schedule !l of the Companies Act 2013.

Intangible assets Useful lives {in years)
Software 3  Years

{xviii) Material Accounting Policy Information

The Company adopted Disclosure of accounting policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) from 1 April 2023.
Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting poticies themselves, they impacted
the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material” rather than “significant™ accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand
othar information in the financial statements.

...Space intentionally left blank...
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3 Right-of-use assets
Cpening balance

Depreciation charged for the year
Closing balanee

Refer Note 21 for Lease Liabilities

4  Deferred tax zssets (net)

Deferred tax assets {nat)

Refer Note 25

5 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts
65 Other Financial Assets {Current}

Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits

As at
March 37, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3.28 4489
(1.21) {1.21)
2.07 3.28

As at
March 31, 2024

As st
March 21, 2023

0.01

0.08

0.01

0.08

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 20623

4.52

5.54

4.52

5.54

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

0.25

0.25

For explanation on the company's credit risk management refer note 23

7  Other current assets

Balance with government authorities
Prepaid expenses
Advance to Suppliers

As at
March 21, 2024

As at
March 21, 2023

0.38
0.16
0.26

0.80

space fntentionally feft blank.....
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8 Equity share capital

(i). The Company has two class of shares i.e. Equity Shares and Preference Shares, having a par value of ¥ 10 per share and Z 10 per share respectively.

Authorised shares

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Equity shares
1,00,000 shares (previous year 1,00,000) of ¥ 10 each 10.00 10.00
Total 10.00 10.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares
50,000 shares (previous year 50,000) of ¥ 10 each 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
(ii). Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 50,000 50,000 5.00
Shares issued during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 50,000 50,000 5.00

{iil). Terms/rights attached to equity shares
Voting

Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held.

ividend

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in
ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The Company has not distributed any dividend in the current and

previous year.

Liguidati

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at

{iv). Equity shares held by holding company As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Percentage Number Percentage
A-One Steels India Private Limited 49,999 99.998% 49,999 99.998%
(v). Detail of shareholders helding more than 5% of equity share of the Company
Name of shareholders As at As at .
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Percentage Number Percentage
A-One Steels India Private Limited 49,999 99.998% 49,999 99.998%

(vi). No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus

shares or bought back during the current and previous financial year.

(vii). Details of equity share held by Promoters at the end of year

Name of promoters As at . % As at
March 31, 2024 change March 31, 2023
Number Percentage Number Percentage
A-Orie Steels India Private Limited 49,999 ¢ 99.998% 0.00% 49,999 99.998%
Sandeep Kumar 1 0.00% 1 0.002%

50,000 100%

50,000 ,i/_#},s ] ',,\ 0%

{viii}. No shares are reserved to be issued under options and contracts/ commitme
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9

{i).

{i.

1@

11

12

13

14

18

As at
March 31, 2024

Other equity

As at
March 31, 2023

Retained earnings

Opening balance (11.77} (8.49)

Profit/{Loss) during the year {2.59) (3.28)

Clesing balance (14.36) {11.77)
(14.36} {11.77

Mature and purpose of other equity:

Retained earnings

Retained earnings reprasents the surplus/ (deficit) in profit and lass aceount and appropriations.

Borrowings {non-current) As gt As gt

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Loans from directors 0.70

0.65

.70

Q.65

Unsecured loans from related parties repayable after & years are non interest bearing and the same were initially recorded at fair value and subsequently

measured at amortised cost in accordance with Ind AS 708.
Fer explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 23.
For Related Party Transactions refer note 22.

Lease liabilities (non-current} As at

iarch 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

lLease liabilities 1.03

2.38

1.03

2.38

Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 23.
Refer Note 21 for Lease Liabilities

Other non-current fiabilities As at

RMareh 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred fair value gain on account of laan from directors 0.29

0.35

0.29

0.35

Lease [inbilities {current) As at

Mareh 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Lease liabilities 1.35

1.23

1.35

1.23

Footnete:
For axplanation on the Cempany's liquiclity risk management process, refer note 23.
Refer Note 21 for Lease Liabilities

Otker financial Habilities {current} As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Audit fees payable 0.25 0.25
Other expenses payable - 0.64
Payable to Group Companias 13.31 10.14

13.56 11.03

Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 23.

Other current liabilities As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 20232

Statutory dues payable 0.08

.03

0.68

0.03
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16 GOther Income

Interest Income

- on deferred fair value gain of unsecured loans

17 Finance costs

interest expenses
- on lease liabilities
- on fair valuation of Unsecured Loans
- on late payment of statutory dues

18 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 3}

19 Other expenses

Legal and professional expenses (refer footnote}

Rates and taxes

Footnote:

Payment of remuneration to suditors (excluding GST)

- as auditor
« for statutory audit

28 Earning per share

For the year ended
iMarch 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

0.06 0.02
0.06 0.02
For the year endad  For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

027 037

0.05 0.02

- 0.00

6.32 0.3¢

For the year ended  For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2624

WMarch 31, 2023

1.21

1.21

1.21

147

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

0.93 1.02
0.12 0.76
1.05 1.78
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 21, 20623

0.25 0.25
0.25 0.25
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 20623

{a}. Basic and diluted earnings per share (in absolute numbers)
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company (5.18) {6.55)

{k). Reconciliations of earnings used in ealculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Profit from continuing operatian attributable to the equity share holders (2.59; (3.28

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in caleufating {2.59} {3.28)
basic and diluted earnings per share

(). Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator {in absolute numbers}

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the deneminator in 50,000 50,000
calculating basic and diluted earnings per share

The Company has not issued any instrument that is potentially dilutive in the future. Hence, e

Qe number of
shares outstanding at the end of the year for calculation of basic as well as diluted EPS is the sgfff \
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A

(i}

{ii)

(iif)

tiv)

(v)

{wi}

Leases

Leases as a lessee

The Company has leasing agreement with the helding company in respect of its head office for a period of 5 years.

Movermnent in lease liabilities

Opening balance

Additions on account of new lease contracts entered into during the year
Finance cost acerued during the year

Payment of lease liabilities

Closing balance

Break-up of current and non-current lease lakilities

Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease fiabilities

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3.61 474
0.27 0.37
(1.50) {1.50)
2.33 3.61

As at
Rlarch 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

135 1.23
1.03 2.38
2.38 3.61

The details of contractual maturities of kease liabilities as at year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

Commitments for lease payments in refation to non-exempted leases are
payable as follows:

- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five years

Commitments for lease payments in relation to nor-exempted leases are
payable as follows:

- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five years

Amount recoginised in the statement of profit and loss

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Finance costs on lease liabiiities

Amount recoginised in statement of cash flows

Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities

For reconciliation of carrying amount of right-of-use assets and detalls thereof, refer note 3.

As at March 31, 2024

Lease payments

Finance charges

Net present value

1.50 ¢.15 1.35
1.06 .03 1.03
2.56 0.18 2.38

As at March 31, 2023

Lense payments

Finance charges

Net present value

1.50 0.27 123
2.56 0.18 2.38
4.08 B.45 3.67

Fer the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1.21 1.21
0.27 0.37
1.43 1.58

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 Mareh 37, 2023
1.50 1.50
1.50 1.50




A-One Gold Steels India Private Lirnited

(CIN: U27300KA2020PTC137708)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

22 Related party disclosures

" The related parties as per terms of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures", specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are disclosed below:

A. List of related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place

Nature of relationship Name of related party
Holding company A-One Steels India Private Limited
Fellow subsidiary company Vanya Steels Private Limited

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited
A-One Gold Singapore Pte, Ltd.

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Sunil Jallan Director
Sandeep Kumar Director

B. Transactions with related parties during the year are as following: -

Name of Related Party and Nature of Transactions Nature of Relationship For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest expense on lease liabilities
A-One Steels India Private Limited Holding company 0.27 0.37

Borrowings taken
Sandeep Kumar 7 Key Management Personnel - 1.00

Payment of Lease Liabilities (excluding GST)
A-One Steels India Private Limited Holding company 1.50 1.50

€. Balance outstanding with or from related parties as at:

Name of Related Party and Nature of Balances Nature of Relationship As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Payable to Group Companies
Vanya Steels Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 6.12 6.06
A-One Steels India Private Limited Holding company 7.19 4.08

Lease liabilities

A-One Steels India Private Limited Holding company 2.38 361
Borrowings
Sandeep Kumar Key Management Personnel 1.00 1.00

D. Terms and Conditions

(i) For terms and conditions of leases, refer note 21.
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Z3

).

Fair walue messurement and financial instruments

Financial instruments - by category and fair values hisvarchy

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Bs at March 21, 2024

Carrying value (as at March 31, 2024)

Fair value measurament using

FWTRL FVTOC] Cost Amoriised cost Total Lews] 1 Level 2 Lavel 3

Financizl assets
Mon-current
Currant

Cash and cash equivalents 452 4.52 4,52

Other Financial Assets 0.25 0.25 0.25
Total ATF 477 477
Financial labilities
Mon-current

Borrowings 070 0.70 0.70

Lease lizbilities 1.03 1.03 1.03
Currant

Lease liabilitias 1.35 1.35 135

Other financial liabilities 13.57 13.57 13,57
Tatal 16.65 15.65 16.65
As a6 March 31, 2023 Carrying value {as at March 31, 2023} Fair value measurement using

FYTRL FYTQCE Cost Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3

Financial assets
Non-current
Current

Cash and cash equivalents 5.54 5.54 5.54

Other Financial Assets - - -
Total 5.54 k.54 5.54
Financial fabilities
Mon-current

Borrowings 0.65 0.65 0.65

Lease liabilities 238 2.38 2.38
Current

Lease liabilities 1.23 1.23 1.23

Other financial liabilities 17.03 11.03 1103
Total 15,29 15.29 315.2%
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b).

{i}.

{ii).

Fair vadue bievarchy

Lavel 1: it includes financial instruments measured using guoted prices.

Lavel 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as litde as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the

instrument is included in level 2.

Leved 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3, The fair value of financial assets
and liabilities included in Level 2 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their short-
tarm nature, Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant differences hetween carrying value and
fair value,

Valuation processes
The Management performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair

valuas,

Financial risk rmmanagrment

The Company has exposure to tha following risks arising from financial instrumants:
« Credit risk
» Liquidity risk
= Market risk

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Cash and cash eguivalents 4.52 554
Other Finandial Assets 0.25 -

Credit risk is the risk of financial less to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails te meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The Company's credit tisk is primarily to the amount due from customers and loans. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is imited as the Company generally invests in deposits with
scheduled commaercial banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

Liguidity eisk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial llabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilitias when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccaptable losses ar risking damage e the Company’s
reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and funding from Company companies to meet its liquidity reguirements in the short and leng term.

The Company's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
- Day to Day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining roliing forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure te liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:

.Continued on naxt page
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(iii).

24

Carryin Contractual cash flows
As at Miareh 31, 2024 ing Less than Between one to iore than
amount ) Tetal
one year five years five years
Borrowings 0.70 - Q.70 - 070
Lease liabilities 2.38 1.35 1.03 - 2.38
Other financial liabilities 13.57 13.57 - - 13.57
Total 16.65 14.91 1.73 - 16.65
Carrvin Contractual cash flows
As at Mareh 21, 20232 ying Less than Between one to More than
amount . . Total
one year five years five years
Borrowings 0.65 - - 0.65 0.65
Lease liabilities 3567 1.23 2.38 - 361
Qther financial liabilities 11.03 11.03 - - 11.03
Total 15.2% 12.28 2.38 0.65 15.2%

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flews of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types
of risk: interest rate risk, currancy risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has expesure to two type of market risk namely: currency risk and interest rate
risk. The ohjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

a. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main
interest rate risk arises from long-term borrewings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company’s borrewings carries fixed rate of interest, therefore, there is no exposure to interest rate risk.

b. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of earnings and
expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure arises primarily due o exchange rate fluctuations between the funciional eurrency and other currencies from the
Company's operating, investing and financing activities.

Exposuie to forgign eurreney risk
The Company has no fereign currency denominated menetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period, therefore, there is no

exposure to currency risk.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves atiributable to the equity
holders of the Company.

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company moniters capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity
attributable to ewners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Barrowings - -

Less: Cash and bank kalances 452 5.54
Adjusted net debt (A) MA NA
Total equity (B) 19.36} (6.77}

Adjusiad net debt to adjusted equity ratio {A/B) NA NA




A-One Gold Stesls lndia Private Limited
{CIN: U27300KAG20FTCT37708)

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
25 Inecome taxes
A, Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
income tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax expense

Eor the year ended
Wiarch 21, 2024

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

Change in recognised temporary differences 0.07 0.08)
0.07 {0.08)
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rate Armount Rate Amount
Profit before tax from continuing operations 2517% (2.52) 25.17% (3.36)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate - -
Tax effect of:
Expenses on fair valuation of financial instruments & Leases 0.06 0.omh
Income on fair valuation of financial instruments & Leases oo {0.07)
Prior period expenses ~
0.07 {0.08)
C. Tax losses and deductible temporary differences carried forward
Unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised.
Particulars Expiry March 31, 2024 Blarch 31, 2023
Tax loss Fy 2028-29 6.20 6.20
Tax loss FY 2029-30 1.96 1.96
Dedcutible temporary differences NA 0.25 0.25
0. Mevement in deferred tax balances As gt Recognised Recognised As st
Rarch 31, 2023 in P&L in OCH Wiareh 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets
Leases 0.08 (0.01) - 0.07
Other Nen Current Liahilities 0.0% (0.02) - 0.07
Other Financial Assets {Current} - (0.06) - {0.06)
Sub- Total (2) .17 (0.09) - 8.08
Deferved tax liabilities
Borrowings 0.08 0.01 - 0.09
Sub- Total () .08 0.01 . 0.09
Deferved tax lishilities (net) (b) - (a) {0.09) 10.08) - (0.01)
D. Movement in deferred tax balances As at Recognised Recognised As at

Deferred tax assets
Leases
Other Nan Current Liabilities

Sub- Total {a)

Beferred tax Habilitias
Borrowings

Sub- Total (b}

farch 31, 2022 in P&L in OCI Wiarch 31, 2023
- 0.08 - 0.08
- 0.09 - 0.09
- 0.17 - .17
- 0.09 - 0.09
- 0.09 - 8.0%
0.3 - 0,08

Deferved tax labilities (net) (b) - {a)




A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited
{CIN: U2T7300MAZ020PTCII7708)

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 21, 2024

(Al amounts are in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

26 Kev Firancial Ratios

&),

a}

LY

e}

o)

f)

a}

f)

Key financial ratios along with the details of significant changes (25% or more} in FY 2022-23 compared to FY 2021-22 is as follows:

Formulae For the year ended Reason for change
Rati % Change
ates March 31,2024 | March 21, 2023 9
Current ratio (in times) Current Iassr-_*.ts: / 037 0.45 -17.55% Less than 25%
Current liabilities
Debt equity ratio (in times) Debt / Shareholders’ equity 0,07 010 32 06% Less than 25%
Debt service coverage ratio {in times} Earnings available for debt
services / (Repayment of NA NA NA NA
borrowings + Interest)
Return on Equity Ratio (%) Profit/(loss) .after ta)fes / 8% _A8% A2 80% Refer Foot Note B {i
Total Closing equity
Return on Capital Employed Ratio (Pre tax) (%) Earning be‘fore interest & 30% 88% 65.87% Refer Foot Note B (i)
tax / Capital employed
Net profit ratic (%) Net profit / Re-venue NA NA NA NA
from opeartions
Invetory Turnover Ratio (in times) Cost of Goods Sold / NA NA NA NA
Avarage Inventory
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio {in times) Credit sales / Average NA NA NA NA
trade receivables
Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Credit purchases / Average
trade payablas NA NA NA NA
Net capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations /
Average working capital NA NA NA NA




£-One Gold Steels india Private Limited

(CIN: U2T300KA2028PTCI27708)

Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

B. Reasons for significant changes (25% or more)

{i). Decrease due to increase in Other Equity
{it}. Decrease due to decrease in Assets and increase in Current Liabilities.

{C). Formulas
i} Current Assets=Total Current Assets
) Current Liahilities=Total Current Liabilities-Current Maturities of Long Term Debt
{iii) Debt=Long Term & Short Term Borrowings
(v} Shareholders's Fund=Total Equity
¢} Earnings available for debt servicas=Earnings before Interast ,Tax and Depreciation & Amortization
fwi} Repayment of Borrowings+Interest=Current Maturity of Long term Debt +Finance Cost
fvil} Prefit/(loss) after taxes=Profit after Tax
{vilii) Total equity=Total Closing Equity
(iX) Capital Employed=Total Assets-Current Liabilities
3} Farning before interest & tax=Profit before Tax+Finance Cost
{xi} Net Profit=Met Profit after Taxas
i1} Revenue from Operations=Total Revenue from Operations
(i} Cost of Goods Sold=Cost of materials consumed +Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
{xiv] Average Inventery={Gpening Inventory+Closing [nventory)/2
3V} Credit Sales=Total Sales
{xvi) Average Trade receivables={Opening Trade Receivables+Closing Trade Receivables)/2
{xvil} Credit purchases=Purchase of Materials
Leviii) pverage Trade Payables={Opening Trade Payables+{losing Trade Payables)/2
{xix} Revenue from Operatians=Total Revenue from Oparations
800 Average working capital=(Opening Working Capital+Closing Working Capital)/?

{318) working Capital=Current Assets-Current Liabilities




A-Cne Gold Steels India Frivate Limited

{CIM: U272300KA2020PTCT27T08)

Motes fo the financial skatements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
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Thera are no contingent liability and commitments as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Operating segments

The Cempany is having no business operation in current and previous financial year and having no segments. Therefore, reporting of segment
information in accrodance with Ind AS 108 is not applicable.

Expenditure on CSR activities

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not covered under the said provisions and not required o spend any ameount
on CSR activities in current and previous financial year.

The Company is in the process of identifying Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. Therefore, it is not possible for the Company to ascertain whether payment to such enterprises has been done within
45 days from the date of acceptance of supply of goods or services rendered by such enterprises and to make requisite disclosure.

The Parkament of India has approved new Labour Codes which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund,
Employee State Insurance and Gratuity. The effactive date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be
framed. The Company will carry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial statements in the period in which the
Codes become effective and the related rules are published.

The Company has no borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and there is no requirement to
file quarterly returns or staternents of current assets.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck-off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956,

The Company does not have any immaovable property (other than properties where the Company is a lesses and the lease agreements are duly
executed in the favouur of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company.

The Company daes not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami proparty.

The Company has riot traced or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned ar invested funds to any other persenis) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{bj provide any guaraniee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any personls) or entity(ies), incuding foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding
{whether recorded In writing or otherwize) that the Company shall

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{Ultimate Beneficiaries} or

{b) provide any guaraniee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company doas not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Regtrar of Companies ("ROC") beyend the statutory
period.

The Company has not done any such transaction which is not recordad in the books of accounts that has been surrendared or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey ar any other relevant provisions of the
Ineoime Tax Act, 1981},




A-Dneg Gold Steels india Private Limited

{CIN: U27300KA2020PTCT37708)

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended Barch 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless stated otherwise}

41 The Company has not been dedared a wiiful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on
wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

42 The Company has not used any borrowings from banks and financial institutions for purpose other than for which it was taken.

43 These financial staternants were approvad for issue by the Board of Directors on August 28, 2024,

For R. Singhvi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
iCAI FRM: 0038705,

Cluodl
G: Padvan Kumar ™~

Partner 2
Membership No.; 228771 §

Place: Bengalury Placa: Bengaluru
Date: August 28, 2024 Date: August 28, 2024

Place: Bengaluru
Date: August 28, 2024
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GROUP

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 04" Annual General Meeting of the Members of A-ONE
GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“Company”) wil be held on Saturday, 28"
September 2024 at 9.00 AM at the Registered office of the Company Situated at A
One House, No.32é, Front Portion, First Floor, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar,
Bengaluru -560092 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as
at 31 March,2024 and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended as on that date
and the Report of the Auditor's and Board of Directors’ attached thereon.

2. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors:

To consider, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 13%(1) and Section 142(1) and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
there under, as amended from time to time, M/s. R. Singhvi & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 03870S),were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company at
the 01t AGM held on 24/11/2021 for period of 5 years and to hold office until the
conclusion of the 04 Annual General Meeting and that the Board of Directors
hereby authorised to fix the remuneration for the remaining tenure of the said
auditors in consultation with them."

A




SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. 1O EXEMPT THE AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY TO ATTEND THE GENERAL MEETINGS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable provisions, if any, consent of members of the Company be and

is hereby accorded to consider giving exemption to the Auditors of the Company to
attend the General Meetings."

By Order of the Board
For A-ONE GOLD STB@[&INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

—

QNE B/

(SANDEEP KUMAR)
Director
DIN: 02112630
Address: Tower-3-39B, 3%th Floor
SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 28/08/2024
Place: Bengaluru




Note:

I

A member is enfitled to attend and vote at the meeting and is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of themselves and such proxy need not be a member of the

Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shalll
not act as a proxy for any other person orshareholder.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board
Resolution of the representative(s) authorised under the said Board Resolution to attend and
vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

The Register of Members, Register of Directors, Register of Directors' Shareholdings
maintained u/s. 88 and 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, and such other Registers and all the
documents referred in the accompanying notice and the explanatory statement shall be
open for inspection of members at the Registered office of the Company during business
hours on any
working day, up to and including the date of the EGM of the Company.

The notice of AGM will be available on Companies website https://aonesteelgroup.com.

Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed
herewith.

Attendance slip, proxy form and the route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed
hereto.

In case of any specific queries/clarification on the operations or any other subject, members
may send their queries to the registered office of the Company before convening the
meeting.




ITEM NO. 03:

As per Section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members is required for
exempting the Auditors of the Company to attend General Meetings. The Board
recommends this resolution for the approval of the members as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors of the company/their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice.

By Order of the Board
For A-ONE GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

o J
PAAR
\

-

(SANDEEP KUMAR)
Director
DIN: 02112630
Address: Tower-3-39B, 3%9th Floor
SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 28/08/2024
Place: Bengaluru




Route Map to A-ONE GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED:
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BOARD'S REPORT
To,
Dear Shareholders,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 4" Annual Report on working of your
Company together with audited statement of Accounts of the company for the year
ended 31t March, 2024,

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS/STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS:

Financial performance of your Company on a standalone basis for the financial year

2023-24 are summarized below:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars From 01  April | rom 018 April
| 2023 to 31¢ March | 2022 to 31¢ March
2024 2023

Net Revenue from operations - -

Other Income 0.06 0.02

Total Income 0.06 0.02

Total Expenses ! 2.58 3.38

Profit/(Loss) before tax (2.52) (3.36)

Tax Expenses, MAT Credit & Defered 0.07 (0.08)

tax

Profit / (Loss) after tax (2.59) (3.231

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW:
The company is in initial stage where the expenses forms the major part of Profit and
loss account thereby, there is loss of Rs. 2.59 lakhs as compared to previous year loss
of Rs. 3.28 Lakhs. Your Directors expect that the performance of the Company during

the current financial year would improve as estimated.




. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There is no change in the nature of business carried out by the Company during the
financial year 2023-24,

- MATERIAL_CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEEN END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position

between end of financial year and date of report.

. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no such orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the

going concern status and company's operations in future.

- PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION EACH OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Associates and Joint Venture, Subsidiary

Companies.

. DIVIDEND:
Your Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year ending
31¢t March, 2024.

. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve or any other

reserves for the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL:

The Board provides following disclosure pertaining to Companies (Share Capital
and Debentures) Rule, 2014:



10.

i B

12,

13.

Sl. No. | Particulars Disclosure

1. Issue of Equity shares with differential rights Nil
2 Issue of Sweat Equity shares Nil
3. Issue of employee stock option Nil
4, Provision of money by company for purchase of

its own shares by trustees for the benefit of
employees Nil

The Authorized Share Capital as on 315" March, 2024 was Rs. 5,00,00,000/- consisting
of 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 49,00,000, 0.01% Non-cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-each and paid up share capital of the
company was Rs. 5,00,000/- consisting of 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

During the year there is no change in the capital structure, the Company has not
issued any shares or convertible instruments.

DEPOSITS:
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
As per Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company shall place a copy of

the annual return on the website of the company, if any and the web-link of such
annual return shall be disclosed in the Board's report. As the company is not having
website, the details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 2 is
annexed herewith as "Annexure-|".

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All contracts, arrangements, transactions entered into by the company during the

financial year under review with the related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on the arm’s length basis. Details as required by Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in Form AOC-2 as “Annexure-Il".

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):
Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable.




14. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
= RoR R AN LT ENERGT AND TECHANOLOGY ABSORPTION:

technology absorption;

(i) The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import

substitution.

(iii) In case of imported technology
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year).

(iv] The expenditure incurred on
Research and Development.

Sl. PARTICULARS DISCLOSURE

No.

(A) | Conservation of Energy: The Energy conservation continues to
() The steps taken or impact on | receive priority attention at all levels.
conservation of energy All efforts are made to conserve and

optimize use of energy with
(i) The steps taken by the company | continuous monitoring, improvement
for utiizing alternate sources of | in maintenance through improved
energy operational technigques.
(ii) The capital investment on energy
conservation equipments
(B) Technology Absorption: Updation of Technology is a
Continuous process; efforts are
() The efforts made- towards continuously made to develop new

products required in the Company's
activities.

NA

Nil

Nil

15. FOREIGN EX

CHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Particulars

As on 31.03.2024

As on 31.03.2023

Foreign Exchange Earning

Foreign Exchange Outgo

16. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board comprises following Directors:



SI. No. | Name of the Director Designation

O1. Sandeep Kumar Director

02 Sunil Jallan Director
Details of Remuneration paid to Directors:
SI No Name of the Director Remuneration
01 - -

17. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

During the Financial year 2023-24, there were 06 Board Meetings held on following

dates:
SI No Date of meeting Total Number of Aftendance
directors
associated as
on the date
of meeting
Number of % of
directors attendance
Attended
1 15.05.2023 2 2 100
2 09.06.2023 2 2 100
3 27.09.2023 2 2 100
4 23.12.2023 2 2 100
5 20.02.2024 2 2 100
6 11.03.2024 2 2 100

18. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has not given loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the

companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

19. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state

that;

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to the material

departures:




(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year
under review.

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other iregularities.

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating

effectively.

(f} The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be folowed by the
Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively,

20. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and

operating effectively. The Company has followed the applicable Secretarial Standard
issued by the ICSI.

21. RISK MANAGEMENT:
The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company. In today’s
challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in
accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative.

The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology
obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. It also

includes exchange risk as the transactions takes place among foreign countries.
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24,

Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk.
As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to
mitigate the same.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

The management has alwdys carried out systematic appraisal of performance and

imparted training at periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent
and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding performance.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect

from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets.

All the ftransactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accou nting Standards for

properly maintaining books of accounts and reporting financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company is not covered under the provisions of Section 178(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. However, the remuneration policy as adopted by the
Company envisages payment of remuneration according to qualification,
experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The employees

who are engaged in clerical, administrative and professional services are suitably

- remunerated according to the industry norms.

25.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company being a Private company, the provisions with respect to Independent

directors is not applicable.
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28.

29.

30.

DISCLOSURE _AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place a prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the

requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set
up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees

(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.
During the year 2023-24, no complaints were received by the Company related to

sexual harassment.

DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS PER SECTION 148(1):
Not Applicable.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2013 as on 31st March, 2024.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:

As on 31st March 2024, the Company did not entered transaction for One Time

Settlement of loan/borrowings from Bank and obtaining valuation report on the
same. ;

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

During the year under review, the Company had no employees who earned

remuneration beyond the limits specified under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment
Rules, 2016.



31. AUDITORS:
i) STATUTORY AUDITORS:
M/s. R. Singhvi & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 03870S), were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the company at the 01st AGM held on 24/11/2021 for

period of § years and to hold office until the conclusion of the 0éth Annual General

Meeting. Accordingly, the Board proposed to ratify the remuneration for the
remaining tenure of the said auditors in consultation with them.

i) INTERNAL AUDITOR:
Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Appointment of Internal Auditor is not
applicable.

lii) COST AUDITOR:
Not Applicable

iv) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

appointment of Secretarial Auditor is not applicable.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank its Bankers for their support in the growth

of the Company. Your Directors wish to acknowledge with gratitude the patronage
extended to the Company by the large body of its customers and contribution
made by the employees at all levels and look forward to their dedicated

commitment in the years to come towards the Company reaching greater heights.



Finally, Directors would like to convey their deep sense of gratitude to the members
and look forward to their continued support in the growth of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board
FOR A-ONE GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
AR

- ”~
A5\ ‘
AR : , \
_,}co i , I~ T_;x
(Sunil Jalan) (Sandeep Kumar)
Director Director
DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 28/08/2024
Place: Bangalore



Annexure-|

FORM NO. MGT ¢

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN U27300KA2020PTC 137708

2. | Registration Date 26/08/2020

3. | Name of the A-ONE GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Company

4. | Category/Sub- Company Limited by shares/Indian  Non-
category of the Government Company
Company

5. | Address of the A One House No0.326, Front Portion, First Floor CQAL
Registered office Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bengaluru -

560092

5(i) | Contact No. 080-45646000

5(ii) | E-mail ID legal@aonesteelgroup.com

6. | Whether listed No
company

F i Name, Address & Not Applicable

contact details of
the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if
any.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: NIL
(All the business activities confributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated)

Sl Name and Description of NIC Code of % to total turnover of the
No. Main products / services the company
Product/service
01 Manufacture of Iron and 2410 0%
Steel
lll.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-
SILN| NAME AND CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applica
o. | ADDRESS OF THE Subsidiary | shares ble
COMPANY 7 held ' Section
Associate ,




01

A-One Steels
Private
(Formerly known as
A-One
Alloys Private Limited)

Steel

India
Limited

and

U28999KA2012PTC04634
39

Holding

100%

2(46)

V.

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year

%
Chan

De
mat

Physical

Total % of
Total

Shares

Dem
at

Physical

Total

% of ge
Total | dvurin

Shar g
es the

year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

Q)
Individual/
HUF

1 0.01

0.01 -

b) Central
Govt

c) State
Govi(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

49,999

49,999

49,999

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any other

Sub- Total
(A) (1):-

50,000

50,000

50,000

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs-
Individuals

b) Other
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corp.

d) Banks/ Fl

e) Any other

Sub- Total
(A) (2):-

Total
shareholding
of Promoters
(A)= (A)(1)+
(A)(2)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / Fl




'c) Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

Q) Flis

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1
lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others
([specify)

Sub- Total
(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

50,000

50,000

100

50,000

50,000

100




ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

Sl. | Shareholder Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of the | % change
No. 's Name beginning of the year year in
No. of % of [of No. of % of | %of shareholdi
Shares total Shares Shares total | Shares ng during
Share Pledged / Shares | Pledged / | the year
s of lencumbe ofthe | encumber
the redto compa | ed to total
comp fotal ny shares
any shares
01. | Sandeep 01 0.01 - 01 0.01 Nil -
Kumar
02. | A-One 42,999 | 9999 - 49,999 9999 Nil -
Steels India
Private
Limited
(Formerly
known as
A-One Steel
and Alloys
Private
Limited)
Total 50,000 100 - 50,000 100 - -
iii)Changes in Promoters’ Shareholding: NA
sl. | Shareholder's | Shareholding at the | Data wise Increase / Decrease in Cumulative
No. Name beginning of the Promoters Share Shareholding
year holding during the Year during the year
specifying the reasons
forincrease / decrease
No. of | % of total | Reason for Date No. of No. of | % of total
Shares | Shares of | Increase/ Shares | Shares | Shares of
the Decrease the
company company

iv)Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):NOT APPLICABLE.

Sl Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning during theyear
of the year
For Each of the Top 10Shareholders No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company

At the beginning of the year

specifying

Date wise

the

Increase / Decrease
Promoters Shareholding during the year
reasons for

increase

in -




/decrease (e.g. dllotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
1. Allotment

At the end of the year (or on the date -
of separation, if separated during the
year)

v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. | Shareholding of each Shareholding at the Cumulative
No. | Directors and each Key beginning Shareholding during
Managerial Personnel of the year theyear
No. of shares | % of total No. of % of total
o Sandeep Kumar shares of the | shares shares of
company the
company
At the beginning of the year 01 0.01 01 0.01
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc.):-
At the end of the year 01 0.01 01 0.01

V)INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment: (Amount in Lakhs)

Secured
Loans Unsecured Depoils Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of - - -
the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 0.70 - 0.70
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 0.70 0.70
Change in Indebtedness during - - - .
the financial year
e Addition - 0.06 - 0.06
e Reduction - -
Net Change - 0.06 - 0.06
Indebtedness at the end of the - - - -
financial year
i) Principal Amount - 0.65 - 0.65




i) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iil)

- 0.65

0.65

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS, MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS, AND /OR
MANAGER:NIL

Sl
No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Director/MD/WTD/Manager

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 | -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary | -

under Section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option -

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

Others, (Sitting Fees)

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:NIL

Sl
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive
Directors

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission

Others, Remuneration

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act




C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD: NIL

Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CEO | Company | CFO Total
Secretary
1 Gross salary - - - -
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - - - -
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax - - - -
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - - -
] Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - - - -
- as % of profit - - - -
others, specify... - - - -
5 Others, please specify - - - -
Total - - -
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:NIL
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description | Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | made,
Companies Punishment/ COURT] if any
Act Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
On Behalf of the Board -~
FORA-ONE GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
S 2 / L
PR e g 2\ :
(Sunil Jalan) (Sandeep Kumar)
Director Director
DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 3%th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 28/08/2024
Place: Bangalore




FORM NO. AOC -2

Annexure-ll

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm's length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis. : NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or fransactions at Arm'’s length basis.

Sl Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of Date of Amount
No | related party & contracts/ar | contracts/arrange | the contracts or approval by | paid as
nature of rangements | ments/transaction | arrangements or | the Board advanc
relationship /transaction transaction es, if
including the any
value, if any
01 A-One Steels Lease As per Lease As per lease 19/05/2021 | Nil
India Private Services agreement agreement
Limited Expenses On need basis As mutually 19/05/2021 Nil
(Formerly known | Payable agreed
as A-One Steel *
and Alloys
Private Limited)
(Holding
Company)
02 | M/s. Vanya Steels | Expenses On need basis As mutually 19/05/2021 Nil
Private  Limited, | payable agreed
Fellow subsidiary
Company
On Behalf of the Board
,«fgﬁ A-ONE GOLD STEELS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
"’""K?‘:f’f'—'_;— A
Z AW/
(Sunil-Jalan) (Sandeep Kumar)
Director Director
DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630

Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces
Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024

Date: 28/08/2024
Place: Bangalore

Address: Tower-3-39B, 3%th Floor
SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045




